ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG

SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE

December 8, 2015
10: 37 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY

Senator Lesil McQiire, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senator M a Costello

Senator Peter M cciche

Senator Bill W el echowski

HOUSE JUDI CI ARY
Representati ve Gabrielle LeDoux, Chair

Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representati ve Bob Lynn

Representative Charisse MIllett - on tel econference

Representative Matt C aman
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VMEMBERS ABSENT
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY

Al'l menbers Present
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY

Representati ve Neal Foster
Representative Kurt O son

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
COW TTEE CALENDAR

LEG SLATI VE  PRESENTATI ON: OVERVIEW OF THE
CORRECTI ONS ADM NI STRATI VE REVI EW

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -1-

DEPARTMENT  OF

December 8, 2015



- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

DEAN W LLI AMS, " Special Assistant

O fice of the Governor

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated that several nonths ago the governor
asked himto be involved in the Departnent of Corrections (DOC)
policy review.

JOE HANLON, retired FBlI Agent

O fice of the Governor)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Said he becane involved in the DOC policy
review when M. WIllians asked himto be part of it.

KHANESI A MOSLEY

No address stated

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: M. Msley's nother who said she wanted
Davon's truth to be told. She appreciated the work they had done
and what the governor is doing.

VERNESI A GORDON

No address stated

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: M. Mosely's girlfriend who thanked god for
justi ce.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER MONEGAN

Depart ment of Corrections

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrented on changi ng DOC policy and prison
cul ture.

LAURA BROCKS

Heal th Care Adm ni strator

Departnent of Corrections

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on health care issues in the DOC

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -2- December 8, 2015



10: 37: 57 AM

CHAIR LESIL MCGQU RE called the joint neeting of the Senate and
House Judiciary Standing Conmmittees to order at 10:37 a.m
Present at the call to order were Senators M cciche, Costello,
Coghill, Wel echowski, and Chair MQire.

CHAIR GARIELLE LEDOUX announced that Representatives Keller,
Caman, MIllett (teleconference), and Lynn were present.

Legi sl ative Presentation: Overview of the Departnent of
Corrections Adm nistrative Revi ew

10: 38: 54 AM

CHAI R MCGUI RE said the Departnent of Corrections (DOC) report is
| engt hy and was synthesized for today's presentation. The nunber
of deaths in Alaska' s prison system even though Al aska doesn't
have a death penalty, is what |aunched concerns: one being that
Al askans are often inprisoned before trial and haven't had their
day in court. Today they would hear from Dean WIIlians and Joe
Hanl on who Governor Wil ker tasked with an investigation of the
DOC over the last few nonths. The report is a summary of their
work and it is a matter of public record on the Judiciary
websi t e.

She said there had been many attenpts to partner wth the
departnment and she is grateful to the admnistration for its
cooperation. It is an exanple of how governnment can work for the
peopl e. Everyone's intentions are good, but Davon Msley's death
means that sonmething needs to be done quickly, and in a non-
partisan way.

10:41: 44 AM

She said this is not just about inmte safety, but access to
training and safety behind bars for the nmen and wonen who chose
to dedicate their lives serving as corrections officers, parole
officers, and health staff inside these facilities, as well. She
hoped the wongs that cane out of this report could be
rectified.

CHAI R LEDOUX announced Representative G uenberg' s presence and
t hanked the governor, M. Hanlon and M. WIllians for doing this
investigation. She stated that legislators want to figure out
what is wong with the prison culture and fix it w thout blam ng
anyone.

10: 45: 10 AM

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 3- Decenber 8, 2015



DEAN WLLIAMS, "Special Assistant, Ofice of the Governor,
Anchorage, Al aska, introduced hinself and stated that several
mont hs ago the governor asked himto be involved in this review.

JOE HANLOQON, retired FBI Agent , Ofice of the Covernor),
Anchorage, Alaska, introduced hinmself and said he becane
involved in this review when M. WIlIlians asked him to be part
of it. He was assured that the review was going to be based on
facts and circunmstances and that they would have unfettered
access to whatever was needed.

10: 47: 36 AM
MR. WLLIAMVS said the truth is a good place to start and nothing
will deter them from doing that to the best extent possible.

Finding troubling facts tests one's resolve. However, the bottom
line is that they are here, because the governor believes in the
truth. He has not flinched from this resolve. The facts are
important so that change can happen. Today they w Il present
their findings and pictures of four disturbing deaths in the
Al aska corrections system

He al so announced that after today's hearing the governor wll
rel ease two video sequences involving the deaths of Davon Mosl ey
and Gl bert Joseph. It was the governor's intention all along to
rel ease certain videos to the nedia once the famlies had been
fully briefed. Two will be released today and the other two
after the famlies are debriefed. Wien he started this journey,
a close friend told him he was doing work referenced in Mcah
6: 8, which says: "Seek Justice, love nercy and wal k hunmbly with
God. "

10: 50: 25 AM
MR. WLLIAMS said the review |lasted 12 weeks, a heavy lift, and
they are still getting feedback from correctional officers,

staff and inmates. The process has been started and he hears
fromthem every day.

10: 51: 23 AM

MR. HANLON said the departnment has over 200 public policies and
23 nore restricted policies for security and safety, but
surprisingly sonme of them had not been revisited since the
1980s. Prison reformis a nationw de issue and policies should
be reviewed every year or two for current best practices in
prison operations and new case law that is being established in
cases all over the country.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -4- Decenber 8, 2015



MR WLLIAMS said one of the policies of concern is suicide
prevention, which is 20 years old. It is a problem in running
any large organization. Their report talked about facility
structure, one of his areas of expertise, as he had run ran
McLaughlin and a Nonme facility. The command structure is also
inportant and he advised taking a healthy look at it. R ght now
superintendents oversee their mnagers, their admn staff,
including correction officers, their cooks, their maintenance
peopl e, but do not directly supervise nost of their nedical or
mental health staff - kind of a bi-furcated system Those staff
report directly to the DOC state office.

He explained that from his own experience, he would find it
difficult to supervise unless he had conplete control: authority
and supervision of everyone in his building. Sone of the
accunul ated problens have are blurred lines of responsibility
that sonetines cause a problem when things are going well, too.
Many superintendents have nade the divided comand structure
wor k, because in smaller comunities, it's less of a problem
To be fair, he said, everyone in corrections wants to cooperate
and get along. It is not an attitude problem it's just that the
structure of divided command has issues.

10: 54: 59 AM

MR, WLLIAMS said that many reform efforts around the country,
including the federal prisons, have worked very hard to reduce
solitary confinenent or as DOC refers to it, segregation. He had
a high level of concern when he found that four juveniles who
had been in solitary for 11 nonths. These four had escaped from
the Kenai youth facility and had not seriously assaulted a
staff. Solitary confinenment for 11 nonths is problematic even
for adults. So, he has challenged DOC is to start getting in
line with other states and federal prisons that are reducing
solitary confinement. Colorado has reduced solitary confinenent
to alnost zero. It should be "absolutely the last resort” and
clearly articulated for safety and security reasons at the
hi ghest | evel .

MR WLLIAMS said that internal investigation is another big
issue: you can't fix anything unless it can be investigated to
find out what is wong. This is one of the nost profound areas
that needs addressing. They have plans: a short term plan for
the next six nonths and a long term plan that he woul d oversee
from the governor's office of a standup agency to see that all
| aw enf or cenent entities in t he state do i nterna
i nvestigations. He enphasized that the ability to fact-find is

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 5- Decenber 8, 2015



critical, especially for agencies that have such high authority
and control over the people in a closed prison system

Two of their reviewed cases are about two individuals who died
in on Title 47 protective custody; they hadn't even been charged
with a crine! They actually died during the course of his and
M. Hanlon doing the review, which actually helped the review
because they were able to investigate how things happened and
what the outflow of the bad events were.

10: 58: 36 AM
H's point is that right now intoxicated individuals who have not
been charged with a crinme are ending up in jail in protective

custody. Even in that case, there has been confusion in the
department about what Title 47 says. It has becone a mninmm 12
hours when it's really supposed to be a maximum The mnute
sonmeone sobers up or a famly nenber cones by to get you, you're
supposed to be released. Even under current statute there seens
to be confusion about what it says. He encouraged them to work
on this, because it's a wwn/wn all the way around. It is the
bane of liability for all the prisons. He pointed out that this
statute was changed in the juvenile arena about 15 years ago.

MR. WLLIAVS said in Fairbanks the average of 510 people for
returning under Title 47 protective custody is 3.5 tinmes in one
year. One case cane back 73 tines. However, nunbers have dropped
dramatically in sonme places |like Bethel, where progress is being
made with detox centers. H's whole point is that they are
putting high risk, nmedically-unstable people in prison cells
that have other nedically unstable people, and things go wong
in these pl aces.

11: 01: 46 AM
SENATOR M CCI CHE asked if his figures were per annum

MR. WLLIAM answered yes. In 2014, if you were one of the 510
that canme into the Fairbanks facility, you would return 3.5
times on average in one year.

MR. HANLON pointed out in the Glbert case, it was his 8th visit
in one nonth on a Title 47 hold.

11: 02: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked of the 510 individuals who cane into
Fai rbanks correctional facility if any canme in on protective
cust ody.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 6- Decenber 8, 2015



MR WLLIAMS answered that 510 individuals cane back in on
protective custody for a total of 1743 tinmes in one year.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN renmarked that Anchorage has nore than
three tines the population of Fairbanks but has fewer Title 47
i ndi vi dual s.

11: 04: 26 AM
CHAI R LEDOUX asked if the Fairbanks nunbers are skewed because
one or two people were returning nore frequently.

MR. WLLI AMS answered yes.

CHAIR MCGUI RE remarked that the figures show where sone of the
cost drivers are.

11: 05:16 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked the nodal average nunber that
nost peopl e return.

MR. WLLIAMS said he didn't know that answer. He went on to
other policy issues: one being that the cost of the phone call
system just went up, actually causing what |ooked like a riot at
Lemon Creek. Information he has indicates that the cost burden
has increased on i nmates, although it saves the DOC noney.

11: 07: 19 AM

MR. HANLON said another surprising issue is that not al
correction officers could initially attend the training basic
acadeny, which doesn't run continually. One correctional officer
said it took him 10 nonths to get to the Acadeny. This results
in doing things the acadeny way or the field way. The tinme they
are brought on board initially should be nmuch shorter and they
shoul d be assigned to a field training officer.

It was equally confusing that no uniform system is set up to
either annually or at some fixed time nake perfornmance
eval uations to ensure that people understand their jobs and are
performng them correctly. One officer told him he hadn't had an
eval uation for eight years.

11:10: 46 AM

CHAIR MCGU RE said a big concern of a current corrections
officer (CO and one retired one is that they had started out
with very specific approaches to training wth updates
t hroughout the year. That had gotten reduced down to one of the
officers getting just two hours of training and even that had a

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -7- Decenber 8, 2015



backl og. This needs to be highlighted as cultures and best
practi ces change.

11:11: 08 AM

MR WLLIAMS noved on to viewing slides starting with the
ol dest, the Davon Msley case, nostly because it was is
concerning. On March 20 the video showed M. Msley who was
taken into segregation for challenging a CO to a fight. It
doesn't appear that he did that, and he voluntarily handcuffed
up on this day. He was in custody for 20-sone days. He was
sprayed with human pepper spray that first day, a common tool
for law enforcenent that is permtted in jail settings under
strict policies. In this case, it occurred inside the cell.

He explained that the pepper spray is at an approved |evel for
humans. Later on the sane day, M. Msley again got a very |arge
bl ast of the spray. The video showed M. Msley at the cell door
uncuffing, because he had to be cuffed when he was out of the
cell. Wien he returned to the cell, the door closed and he has
his cuffs on behind hinm he goes back to the door so the cuffs
could be renoved. In the scene he appears to fall down with one
cuff on and he wal ks back with one cuff on. He shouldn't have
one cuff on; both should be renoved. The cell door is closed; he
is wal king back to the bunk with no nattress. He is then sprayed

with a full blast, a nuch larger dose from a nuch |arger
canister, after he sits down on the bunk with the cell door
cl osed.

11: 15: 04 AM

SENATOR COSTELLO asked the physical result of getting pepper
sprayed.

MR. HANLON said it is wvery irritating and unconfortable,
especially if it gets into your eyes or nmouth, or if you are
sweating. In law enforcenent it is used to get conpliance. After
it's used the standard protocol is to rinse the individual off.

SENATOR COSTELLO asked if physical ramfications are nore
serious from an inappropriate |evel of pepper spray and if M.
Mosl ey was rinsed off both tines.

MR. WLLIAMS explained that higher concentrations of the
irritating agent is what is used for a bear; it is reduced for
humans. "It's very unconfortable. It shuts you right down." In
that particular case, M. Msley used water in the sink and
toilet water to rinse hinself.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 8- Decenber 8, 2015



CHAI R LEDOUX asked what possible justification there could be
for spraying sonebody once they are already back in their cell.

MR. WLLIAMS answered that he found no justification. On March
25, M. Mosely was picked up on warrant out of California and
brought to the Anchorage jail. On this day, agents from
California showed up to take him back. As a result, according to
DOC docunents, when they saw himin this condition, they did not
want to assunme custody, and didn't. He was subject to release
this day after the paperwork was processed. The paperwork was
apparently lost at the Anchorage jail and he was held in custody
until the day he died. By all I|egal standards, he should have
been rel eased either on this day or very shortly thereafter.

11:19:18 AM
SENATOR M CCI CHE asked the reason for the original warrant from
Cal i forni a.

MR. HANLON answered taht it was a parole violation warrant.
CHAI R MCGUI RE asked about M. Mdsley's nental health condition.

SENATOR M CCI CHE asked if California officials did not think the
of fense was serious enough to risk nmoving M. Msley, were they
provided wth any possible reason he remmined in custody for
anot her week from March 27 until April 4.

MR. WLLIAMS answered they couldn't find a reason in the record.

SENATOR M CCICHE wondered if this was a w despread problem
because of the $80-120/day cost for individuals to DCC.

CHAIR MCGU RE remarked that the PEW Report nentioned how many
people are in pretrial status and in on probation violation, as
opposed to having gone through the actual conviction process.

11:22:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if Alaska law requires DOC to
notify the court if the charges are dropped against a person and
if he has a right to a hearing. Does anything in the |aw protect
the prisoner?

MR WLLIAMS said that was getting away from his area of
expertise, but he couldn't deduce anything from the facts that
caused the systemto retain M. Msley from March 27-on

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -9- Decenber 8, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he wasn't aware of any crinme under
Al aska law for mistreating a prisoner.

MR WLLIAM said that was correct.

CHAIR LEDOUX asked how long it wusually takes between when
charges are dropped and the person | eaves the system when things
go correctly.

MR WLLIAMS said it can take a few hours, but the sane day or
overnight, not the multiple days in this case.

11:24:19 AM
CHAIR MCGQU RE said that nay be a policy Acting Conmm ssioner
Monegan coul d focus on in his wap-up.

SENATOR M CCICHE said if he were a state with a problem
i ndi vidual that Al aska had now chosen to care for, he mght
| eave them in Alaska, too. In the future, they should consider
either commtting to extradite the individual or dropping the
warrant, period. If the crinme is not serious enough, Al aska
shouldn't be volunteering for care taker status to solve other
crimnal justice problens.

CHAI R MCGUI RE asked about M. Msley's diagnosis and how he cane
into protective custody in the first place.

MR. WLLIAVS replied that he was on a warrant, not protective
cust ody.

CHAI R MCCGUI RE asked what precipitated his arrest.

MR. WLLIAVS said concerned extended famly nenbers initiated a
wel fare check, because M. Msley is bi-polar and has had nenta
health problens in the past. He did better on neds. The autopsy
report said he still had sonme residual nmeds in his system It
| ooks like he had theminitially, but not for the extended part
of his stay. He showed pictures of M. Msley in the state of
decl i ning heal th.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE said they should |look at the prison popul ation as
a whole and the policy protocols for handling of welfare checks,
because such a high percentage have underlying nental health
issues. Family said they tried to bring nental health drugs to
him but were declined.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -10- December 8, 2015



MR. HANLON added that this was an extradition case and those are
handl ed differently than the typical crimnal case. It starts
with a warrant and then the person is placed in custody. There
may be provisions that allow them to bail out, but comonly
there are no bail provisions. There is, however, a 10-day hold

and the person is entitled to council. It makes no sense that
this person was on a 10-day extradition hold. They are usually
brought back in court on the 10th day. If the state still wants

him the process continues, but if they don't, he is wusually
released. In this instance the answer was they didn't want him
in which case the warrant goes away.

MR WLLIAMS and MR HANLON both said they could find to no
expl anation for keeping M. Mosley.

11:29: 33 AM
MR. WLLI AMS continued showi ng the pictures; one showed that M.
Mosley had no mattress and only one blanket in his cell. He

expl ai ned that people who are |ocked up in solitary confinenent
find sonmething to do to occupy their tinme or they get into
trouble. That is the reason why enploynent inside prisons and
all the things they used to do in terns of prison industries
were good things. Solitary-confined people, unl ess they
absolutely have to be there, becone problematic and trouble-
makers. Some are not good people to begin with. It looks like a
vi abl e option, but people need outlets or they devolve. This is
why ot her states have made very substantial progress in reducing
its use.

11: 33: 13 AM

CHAIR LEDQUX referred to a picture and asked if M. Mosley was
totally naked and asked if that is how prisoners are left in
solitary confinenent.

MR. WLLIAVMS answered that is how M. Msley was left for this
peri od of days. They had heard other stories of prisoners going
without clothes for shorter periods of time, but hadn't
identified other cases where soneone was |eft wthout clothes
for extended periods of time. M. Msley's case is the nost
egregi ous. Being nude is unacceptable in prison, he said, and
this was nmultiple days on end.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked if M. Msley took his clothes off or was he
not even given cl ot hes.

MR WLLIAMS answered that at this point, M. Msley wasn't
given clothes. They paint the picture that he tore sone of his

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -11- December 8, 2015



clothes and his mattress up earlier; the dynamc is, well, you
destroyed the clothes you had earlier, so you don't get clothes
now. DOC has forns that sort of approve this standard of care
and some are signed off at supervisory |evels.

MR. WLLIAMS continued displaying pictures from March 31 show ng
that a sandwi ch and an apple had been thrown in froma slot in
the cell door. On April 4, a picture at 11:18 a.m showed M.
Mosl ey gasping for air (agonal breathing), releasing his bladder
and probably dying. He was found at 1:10 p.m and staff entered
his cell at 1:16 p. m

CHAI R LEDOUX asked how he died and if an autopsy was perforned.

MR. WLLIAMS replied that he had 12 duodenum ulcers and died of
i nternal bl eeding.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if that is a typical result of a
beati ng.

MR. WLLIAMS said he saw nothing in the videos indicating that
beati ngs occurred.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if anyone knew why he had
duodenum ul cers.

MR. WLLIAMS replied that his close physician friend told him
that stress induces ulcers, but they didn't know that was the
reason M. Mosley died.

11:38: 10 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there is any gap in the tape.

MR. WLLIAMS answered that there are 20 days-worth of videos and
he didn't look through all of them People who saw the videos
didn't see anything like that, but there was a three-hour period
when he was gone out of any canera shot, presunably to shower,
and no bruising was found in the autopsy.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said there was sone question of his being pulled
out of cell for a few hours.

MR WLLIAMS clarified that he didn't |ook at every hour of all

the videos. According to the famly and their |awer, there was
a period of three hours when he was not in the video.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -12- December 8, 2015



CHAI R LEDOUX asked his physical state of health before entering
the facility.

MR WLLIAVS said he |ooks healthy when he conmes in: walKking,
tal ki ng, and cooperating everyone.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked hi s age.

MR. WLLIAMS said he forgot, but over the course of the videos
he has trouble walking and by April 4th he's not functioning
well. He staggers around and sits down a lot. H's condition was
hi ghly troubling.

11:41: 01 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if any enpl oyees had been disciplined
for any actions related to this case and if the procedures
foll owed by the officers were the corrections' policies.

MR. WLLIAVMS answered the only enployees that were disciplined
were the two on shift of the last day in M. Msley's life,
because they were supposed to be doing security checks every 30
m nutes and one of them clained he saw M. Mdsley alive at about
noon, when he had already passed at 11:18 a. m

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the corrections officers were
following policies that were in place at the tine.

MR, WLLIAVS answered that staff felt they were doing what they
were supposed to be doing. He explained that clear policies
provide for adequate food and nedical care. There are policies
for admnistrators, as well, on walking through and neking sure
they are aware of +the conditions of people that are on
segregation. If these policies had been followed, this death
should have been prevented. A culture seenmed to have been
created around segregation, so he and M. Hanlon spent many
hours together |ooking at these places and talking about the
culture and the environment. M. Mosely's case is probably the
nost profound and nost extreme in terns of the concept of
cul ture.

Their report talks about how on certain days in solitary
confinement no one wanted to shower or didn't want to nake a
phone call. To him that seens highly irregular. O her
facilities' log books are filled out to the "T," because that
superintendent "rides roughshod over them" They all get their
showers; you know which ones are out. It |ooks real.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -13- December 8, 2015



11:44: 39 AM

SENATOR COGHILL said it is very disturbing and that a regular
person could not do well wunder these circunstances. Putting
youth in confinenent is troubling and he vowed to take their
recomrendati ons seriously.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE asked M. Msley's weight when he entered the
facility.

MR. HANLON said he didn't renenber, but the pictures show that
he | ost wei ght.

SENATOR M CCICHE asked what had been done procedurally
imredi ately to get in the way of this occurring again until they
can find solutions system w de.

MR, WLLIAVMS answered that these things have to cone out as a
recomrendation of Internal Affairs. In this case if there had
been a proper Internal Affairs investigation they probably would
have made ground, because it would have all been out in front.
In the short term the governor assigned him and M. Hanlon to
|l ook at all future deaths. Conm ssioner Mnegan is on board and
will assign his hand-picked team The renedy is to be as
transparent and honest as possible if anything occurs like this.

Their report is a first step, but he wants to devel op a stand-up
agency that operates outside of the conm ssioner's pressure and
i nfluence. The facts need to conme out clean and those will drive
the solutions. The biggest problemis that they haven't had the
facts in front of them But the governor is not letting off this
particul ar case.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said they look forward to partnering with the
executive branch to address action on these issues.

11:49: 24 AM

SENATOR M CClI CHE said he has a snmall background in investigation
and there are certain levels of risk that require imed ate
solutions and he hoped this investigation rises to that |evel.

SENATOR COSTELLO asked what assurance Al askans have that if they
have a loved who is sent to a state corrections facility in the
i medi ate future that they haven't been sent sonewhere to die.

MR. WLLIAVS answered that everything that came out of their
recommendations is a good start and the internal investigation

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -14- December 8, 2015



piece is so inportant because it changes behavior inside
facilities. However, the public trust issue isn't a quick fix.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if there is any evidence that M.
Mosley or his famly was aware of his nedical condition and at
any time during this period did he ask to see a doctor. And did
he get ulcers before or after incarceration?

MR. WLLIAVS answered that nothing in his nedical file indicated
he had ulcers when he cane in and it's hard to figure out from
the file that he asked for nedical care. One tine he asked to
speak to a nental health technician and there was no log entry
saying he nmet with anyone. Records weren't kept well, and in
that kind of environnment one |earns whether asking for sonething
has any real chance of getting a response.

11:53: 43 AM
CHAIR LEDOUX asked if serious bodily injuries while in jail
woul d be investi gat ed.

MR. WLLIAMS answered that Comm ssioner Mpnegan is fully aware
of the huge problem in reporting bad things that have occurred
inside the facilities and his new |eadership neans they wll
tell the truth.

11:55: 48 AM

CHAIR MCGQUI RE invited the Misely famly forward and said she was
sorry for their loss and appreciated their bravery in comng
forward

KHANESI A MOSLEY, M. Mosley's nother, thanked the commttee for
the opportunity to speak; she wanted Davon's truth to be told.
She appreciated the work they had done and what the governor is
doi ng.

VERNESI A GORDON, M. Msely's fiancé and the nother of his three
chil dren, thanked god for justice.

M5. MOSLEY said Davon was healthy when he entered the facility.
He called his fiancé up every day until the 23rd; he asked for
medi cal attention every day and never received it.

12: 00: 17 PM

CHAIR MCGUI RE asked if she was nmde aware on March 25 that
California authorities decided to quash the warrant for his
par ol e vi ol ati on.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -15- December 8, 2015



M5. MOSLEY said they weren't contacted the day Davon died unti
8 p.m She went to the jail that day at 1:40 p.m and they told
her that he was fine and to cone back later. Later they called
his brother and told himhe was gone.

CHAI R LEDOUX apol ogi zed on behalf of the State of Al aska for
this travesty.

MS. MOSLEY thanked her and said she didn't want anyone else to
have to go through this enotional pain. That is why she wants
this to be known as Davon's Law.

12: 02: 02 PM

CHAIR MCQUI RE said the value of life is very inportant to all of
them and they have tried to keep this as wunpolitical as
possi bl e. She thanked them for com ng forward and | ooked forward
to getting sonething in place this session, so hopefully his
children can say he nmade a difference.

CHAIR MCAU RE invited M. WIllians and M. Hanlon to cone back
to transition to the next case.

12: 03: 25 PM

MR, WLLIAVMS described the Kobuk Case and how policy was
interpreted then. This issue started over a struggle to renove
civilian clothing and replace it with institution clothing. M.
Kobuk was admitted to the Anchorage jail in January 28; he was
charged with stealing a car. The Anchorage Police Departnent
(APD) officers were asked to take two sweatshirts off of M.
Kobuk for evidence. DOC policy was interpreted differently by
staff; sonme thought it nmeant that once a person was in custody,
if APD wanted any clothes for evidentiary value, they had to get
a warrant. The way it was interpreted by other officers was that
APD was asking for it and they wanted to help them out.

He said renoving civilian <clothing and replacing it wth
institutional clothing has a good rationale - for safety. In
their assessnment, this becane a fight over clothing that could
have either been delayed or reviewed when everyone had cal ned
down. He wasn't releasing the video at this point, because the
famly had not had tine to weigh in.

MR. WLLIAMS said when M. Kobuk came in, he told the nurse that
he had cardi o-nyopathy (a bad heart). But during the course of
the restraint, he was placed on his stomach and the sweatshirts
were essentially cut off of him The report states that he
articulated to the AP officer and a corrections officer that he

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -16- December 8, 2015



couldn't breathe several times and he can be heard saying it on
one of audios. At 23:45 the correctional officers |eave the
cell. At one tinme an officer actually |ooks at M. Kobuk,
because he recognizes that he is not looking right. At 23:48
they realize that he is not noving. Just 30 seconds or so after
that they take him outside and start |ifesaving neasures, but
then M. Kobuk passed.

12: 08: 48 PM

The next case is about Joseph Miurphy, a protective custody case
in Lenon Creek. This death occurred during their review He did
not release the video, because the famly had not weighed in.
Oficers left the cell 23:45 and at 23:48 M. Mirphy was not
nmoving. Thirty seconds later, |ife saving neasures were started
and then he died.

12: 09: 33 PM

MR WLLIAVS explained that M. Mirphy was brought in on
protective custody at 0700 and not charged with any crine. His
bl ood al cohol |evel was .16 or .18.

CHAI R LEDOUX remarked that his bl ood al cohol |evel was not that
hi gh and asked why soneone is brought in for protective custody
when they have just a . 16.

MR. WLLIAMS agreed that it wasn't a high blood al cohol |[evel
M. Mirphy could walk and talk and didn't |ook bad. But at 5:52
a.m he started conplaining of chest pains; at 5:56 a.m another
staff menber shows up and he conplains of chest pains. At 6:02
DOC docunents say staff 4 overhears staff 3 say to M. Mirphy:
"I don't care. You could die now. | don't care." At 6:05 a.m
M. Mirhpy is wal king around patting his chest and periodically
poundi ng on the door. At 6:09 a.m he is down on hands and knees
banging on the door; at 6:14 a.m he's patting his chest again.
At 6:19 a.m he has what appears to be a heart attack. At 6:32
a.m staff start to inquire because he doesn't |ook right. At
6:34 a.m they go into his cell and lifesaving are started at
6:37 a.m. Shortly thereafter Emergency Medical Services (EMS)
arrives and continues with lifesaving neasures for 45 m nutes,
but then M. Mirphy passes.

12:14: 30 PM

MR WLLIAMS said Glbert Joseph was brought in for protective
custody. Hi s background is that he drinks hand sanitizer and had
a blood alcohol level at the autopsy of .5, way beyond
functioning, but yet he was cleared fromthe hospital.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -17- December 8, 2015



SENATOR COSTELLO asked what "cleared fromthe hospital" neans.

MR. WLLIAMS replied that "clearing” is a subjective term that
has no standard neaning; it neans a hundred different things to
a hundred different people.

CHAIR LEDOUX asked if hospitals don't want i nt oxi cat ed
i ndi vi dual s because they cost noney.

MR WLLIAVS answered that in his opinion it is a resource
issue: they take wup bed space and many tinmes they are
uncooperative. Statute says prison is supposed to be the |ast
stop, but it has turned into sonething else. The renmedy wll
cause a |lot of questions. The hospitals don't want them to stay,
but the reality is they are putting people |like M. Joseph who
was at a highly toxic level in a prison.

12:18: 27 PM
CHAIR MCGUI RE said alcoholismis a disease that is an epidemc
in Alaska. People are being put in protective custody with | ower

bl ood al cohol |evels because they are maybe not |iked for sone
reason. On the other end, sonme have a nedical condition and a
hi gh bl ood al cohol level. Is jail the appropriate place?

She explained that for exanple, Bethel has this exact problem
and they have a new facility that 1is designed intoxicated

individuals into protective custody, but it is a nedical-like
facility that adm nisters wthdrawal drugs and does nonitoring.
The goal is to release them into a planned rehabilitation

program She didn't know what the costs are but the diversion
ability has been tremendous in that conmunity.

12: 20: 30 PM
MR. WLLIAMS said there is a lot of discretion in this area and
different comunities are handling it in different ways.

Ketchi kan also has very low nunbers and it has have a very
successful sleep-off center. The superintendent talks glow ngly
about how the conmmunity has dealt with the issue, but it doesn't
work well in all communities.

CHAIR LEDOUX said it would seem that soneone with a .4 or a .5
bl ood al cohol |evel belongs in a hospital and asked if there are
statistics on incone |evels and races of these individuals.

12: 22: 23 PM

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -18- December 8, 2015



MR. WLLIAMS answered the |aw gives the police officer a |ot of
di scretion when no-one else can take care of an intoxicated or
at-ri sk individual.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN nentioned the resource challenge that is
pl aced on the police departnents and hospitals.

SENATOR M CCICHE said it likely took decades to get into this
situation of "a mmjor nmanagenent problem in our prisons.” He
asked where the Department of Law was during all of this.

12: 27: 10 PM
MR WLLIAVS replied that the Departnment of Law had been
notified of concerns on all these cases. In this case, the

trooper was wong in reporting that nothing happened in the cell
when the man had been assaulted numerous tinmes. He and M.
Hanl on considered whether this was inconpetence or purposeful,
but they couldn't answer that exactly. The facts point to a
conbi nation of reasons of how the DOC got there. Some things
have been changed since then, just by the fact that they are
investigating. He remarked that the Departnment of Law was trying
to make sure the state didn't get sued for doing bad, and it is
worthy of them to guard the state's resources. However, that
became the way the problem was approached and he hoped that
started changi ng today.

CHAI R LEDOUX comrented that in a private situation an attorney
m ght advise a client to dispose of private docunents, but it
woul d not be appropriate for the Departnent of Law to advise
that; it wants to see bad things in the |light of day.

CHAIR MCGQUI RE agreed that the report nmentions a culture that is
protective and part of their job is to change that.

12: 30: 25 PM

MR  WLLIAMS said at 12:20 a.m M. Joseph is hit by his
cellmte; at 12:22 a.m he is punched in the head. Wen he first
got this report, it gave the inpression that M. Joseph died in
his sleep but that was not the case. At first, M. WIIlians
explained that they originally received the canmera angle on the
left that didn't show anything. However, after he went back and
visited the facility he was provided the second camera view that
was nhot provided to the DOC investigation team the trooper or
to him This raised alarns about what was going on. This is why
internal investigations matter so nuch.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -19- December 8, 2015



He explained that the second canera was clearer and it showed
the cell door. At 12:33 a.m a staff nenber knew he had been
assaulted at |east once. He was watching this canera in a
control room he called the Sergeant and other staff and told
them M. Joseph just got punched. They went down and checked it
out. Nine mnutes after the staff |eaves, the cellmte (one of
three protective custody individuals in the cell) punches M.
Joseph again. A few mnutes later he is hit again open-handed
across his chest. M. Joseph does not nove during the entire
time of the assault. At 12:45 a.m, M. Joseph is conpletely
i ncapacitated and unconscious. He was drug into his cell and
does not nmove on his own at any tine.

One canmera shows the cellmate putting his hands over M.
Joseph's nouth for two seconds while the other correction
officer is standing there, because M. Joseph is snoring very
loudly. At 12:49 a.m the cellmate rolls M. Joseph on his
stonmach and he got even worse. He is facing straight down on the
mat. So, if he had problems wth breathing before, it's worse
now. At 1:18 a.m the other cellmte noves closer to him after
being against the wall. This did not look right. At 1:30 a.m -
the video footage wasn't very clear - the cellmate put his hand
underneath M. Joseph's face for 15 or 20 seconds. It's clear
that at 1:32 a.m M. Joseph starts agonal respiration (a
nmedi cal term for high carbon dioxide in brain stem basically a
| ast struggle to live). At 1:33 a.m, the cellmte hits M.
Joseph on the back really hard. The last tinme a breath was noted
was at 1:34 a.m At 2:01 a.m a security check is given. M.
WIllians said he surmsed that M. Joseph had passed right after
the agonal breathing. At 3:04 a.m staff finally realizes
sonething is wong and he is taken out of the cell.

12: 38: 43 PM

When he is taken out of the cell another canera caught the
imprint of his nose and nmouth straight down on the mat. At 3:13
a.m the EMS arrives.

MR WLLIAMS stated that the governor is conmitted to doing
sonet hing about this in a non-political way. It wll take real
t hought and strategy. M. Hanlon is on contract for the next six
nmonths to investigate in case sonething else simlar occurs.

CHAI R MCGUI RE t hanked him and vowed to work with him during the
upcom ng session. She comended the governor's statenent that
| eadership is not turning your back on problens in your state
because they are ugly or can nake your adm nistration |ook bad.
Finally, she said corrections is reflective of our civilization.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 20- December 8, 2015



Al people have their struggles, particularly with drugs and
al cohol and cutting nmental health prograns reflects on this.

MR. HANLON echoed M. WIllians' coments in that the report
poi nted out sone clear areas that need to be addressed. Going to
jail seened to be automatic as opposed to a neasure of | ast
resort and there is no established criteria for "clearing" a
per son.

12:45: 05 PM

To people who have relatives in the system M. Hanlon said
t hese cases are gross anonalies to the nornmal care and attention
that is given to inmates in the prisons.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked if the DOC gave them unfettered access to its
records.

MR. HANLON answered that they were given conplete freedom to
what ever records they needed, witten and recorded, but earlier
in the review they got sone feedback from staff that their
superiors wanted to know what questions were asked.

12: 47: 04 PM

SENATOR M CClI CHE commented that prison should not be "cushy,"
but it should be safe. He is disturbed by what he has heard,
particularly in protective custody cases. He asked if the one
inmate charged with assault could have had sonething to do with
the demi se in the | ast case.

MR, WLLIAMS answered the inmate had not been charged wth
anything yet, but he knew it had been referred to the District
Attorney's (DA) Ofice, because he personally called the DA
about it. The DA hadn't even heard of the case before that.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE said the Judiciary site would have link to the
report and the power point fromtoday. She asked how fam lies of
i ncarcerated individuals could contact him

MR. WLLIAMS responded that right now he is getting emails and
letters through constituent relations in the governor's office.
He is confortable wth them comng to his office, the

comm ssioner's office or the governor's office. Hs emil is
dean.wi | | i ams@k. gov.
12:51: 28 PM

CHAIR MCGQUI RE asked if he is reviewing all internal policies to
ensure they have been updated and are conprehended by staff and

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -21- December 8, 2015



are steps being taken right now where there are known problens
(solitary confinement, suicide and training) with an eye to a
nor e conprehensive policy later.

MR WLLIAVS answered that Comm ssioner Mnegan had already
started the policy review Sone policies have been updated, but
at a grindingly slow pace. So, the expectation is of nmaking
pr ogr ess.

12:53: 25 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX said people are confused about protective custody
under Title 47 and the maxi mum anmount of time and asked if the
statute itself is confusing or have people just not read it.

MR. WLLIAVS answered that the statute clearly says the 12-hours
is a maxi mum unless other things occur, |ike soneone wants to
pi ck you up. The practice is the issue.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked how protective custody had been changed for
juveniles and if it could sinply be that way for everybody.

MR, WLLIAMS answered that it could. Wat applies to adults
right now used to be applied to juveniles. The only thing that
changed is that the statute says: "no longer applies to
juveniles.” The only reason that happened is because Al aska was
going to |lose sone federal grant noney in the juvenile systemif
it didn't conply with new l|legislation around this issue. That
| aw changed, but the system adapted. It's one of the reasons the
juvenile counts in the system are down.

SENATOR COGHILL said solitary confinenment for youth is the nost
detrinmental thing to do, but they were sonetines put into
segregation for protection from other individuals.

MR. WLLIAMS said the reason that is done in adult facilities is
that they are already concerned about their Iliability issues
with a youth in a jail setting. But research has validated that
damage is done in solitary to juveniles.

12:56: 51 PM

SENATOR COGHILL said it should be a facilities managenent issue
as well as a people nmanagenent issue. Pre-trial is one of the
bi ggest i ssues.

MR. WLLIAVMS agreed and added that the inportance of the PEW
wor k cannot be overstated. Driving down prison popul ations and
providing "white margins" in a prison system is critical to

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -22- December 8, 2015



reform for a whole host of reasons. The fewer prisoners in the
system the better off the conm ssioner will be at quickening the
reform efforts that need to be done. It is absolutely the right
work at the right tinme in profound ways.

CHAIR MCGUI RE said the nost inportant work this session is to
pul | these pieces together.

SENATOR M CClI CHE asked why Fairbanks is such an "outlier." |If
the one individual is pulled out, it still has people returning
at an average of 3.28 tinmes. Wthout Fairbanks' nunbers, the
nean is 1.4. He asked why so nmany people are being brought in
under Title 47 protective custody.

MR. WLLI AMS answered that he has a 50 percent confidence factor
on his opinion about this. One is the anpbunt of resources the
community has to deal with Title 47 protective custody: how many
sl eep-off beds they have inside the facility. It's also really
driven by the sense of wunderstanding of policy anong the |aw
enforcenent. Fairbanks is a community that has a |ot of people
from outlying villages who live on the street, who are in and
out of halfway houses and in and out of detox places.

SENATOR M CCICHE said in sonme cases, Title 47 is likely to be a
lifesaver in terns of fatalities of the honeless who are likely
i nt oxi cated and di e from exposure.

MR, WLLIAMS agreed and added that dying on the streets is not
an option.

SENATOR COGHI LL added that Fairbanks put together a conmmunity
service patrol because people were dying in doorways. That is
one of the reasons for Fairbanks having "frequent fliers" who
will either be in jail 73 times or have gone through the
hospital 73 tinmes. The idea behind the comrunity service center
was to get themto a sleep-off center, the hospital if need be,
or the jail as the last resort. Unfortunately, because of the
service problem the jail has been nore often the place where
t hey have ended up.

1:03: 04 PM
CHAI R LEDOUX asked if there is usually nore than one juvenile in
a facility at a tinme.

MR. WLLIAMS answered yes. In this particular case, there were
four in one facility.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -23- December 8, 2015



CHAI R LEDOUX asked if jails could have a wing for the juveniles
as opposed to the hole.

MR. WLLIAMS said that at one tinme there was a program at Spring
Creek that dealt with youthful offenders, but that program was
alnmost entirely elimnated. O her states have gotten solutions
through policy efforts, not just noney efforts.

CHAI R MCGQUI RE t hanked staff for putting this neeting together in
such short order and invited Acting Comm ssioner Mnegan to
testify.

1: 05: 38 PM

ACTING COW SSI ONER  MONEGAN, Depart ment of Corrections,
Anchorage, Al aska, introduced hinmself. He said he is glad these
issues cane to light, because it is the only way they wll be
corrected. His team believes no one has to die in corrections
and that everyone should be treated with respect no matter who
they are. The vast mmjority of incarcerated people are good
i ndividuals who have nmde poor choices. A leader Ilike the
state's governor who can feel conpassion and outrage for
Al askans behind bars can create trust in the system but it wll
take time.

LAURA  BROCKS, Health Care Adm nistrator, Depar t ment of
Corrections, Anchorage, Al aska, introduced herself.

CHAI R MCGQUI RE asked for closing remarks about what they had seen
t oday.

ACTI NG COMW SSI ONER MONEGAN said he is sorry this happened, but
he is glad it was brought to the surface. |If there are issues
that need to be addressed, the best way to handle themis out in
public. He appreciated the work the governor, M. WIlIlianms and
M. Hanlon had been doing. Good things can cone out of it, he
said, that will forestall any future simlar kind of events. The
governor can feel conpassion and outrage for Al askans behind
bars and that is a great statenent about the philosophical view
of this admnistration. It wll take time, but once trust is
rebuilt, it will go far.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN thanked the conm ssioner and said the
| egi sl ature woul d support himin any way it coul d.

1:10: 06 PM
SENATOR COGHILL said one of the issues in corrections that is
becom ng nore painfully apparent is the nental health conponent.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 24- December 8, 2015



One of the report's reconmendations is to get the facilities
under a singular direction and asked what he has to nove around
to line that up

ACTI NG COMW SSI ONER MONEGAN answered that a |ot of consolidation
is needed at the Anchorage facilities, but the nental health
i ndi vi dual percentages are high. Utimtely, it would be easier
to consolidate a spot for them but that would deny the
famlies, especially if they live outside of Anchorage, the
ability to provide the support and constant contact to their
famly menber. He hopes with declining populations in facilities
all over the state that sone facilities could be repurposed for
nore intensive nental health treatnent, maybe even a portion for
Title 47 if it is still going to be in DOC. He said the
afflicted need that fam |y support cl ose by.

1:12: 30 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL said with the youthful offenders, because of
segregation and behavioral health, facilities nanagenent becones
a huge problem and the pre-trial novenent of people keeps the
popul ation pretty dynam c. Today he heard about the barrier at
the CO |evel between needing neds and getting them They are
probably | ess sensitive to that.

ACTING COW SSIONER MONEGAN recalled the incident in M.
WIllians' report where one individual reportedly not getting his
meds. If he was there for 20 days, the autopsy showed that sone
medi cation was still in him which tells him that he nust have
been receiving sone nedication during the 20-day period. But the
details could be tracked a | ot better, absolutely.

M5. BROCKS expl ained that the nursing staff is usually the first
line to determine if soneone needs nedication or if soneone
cones in with that history, but sone facilities don't have 24-
hour nursing. Wiat happens then is that those officers take the
history, nmake a basic determ nation, but then the next tine a
nurse conmes on shift, it's up to the nedical staff to actually
make that determnation. It's also up to the nursing staff and
the other nedical staff to make sure that those individuals get
their nedications, and if they are not, to figure out why.

1:17: 39 PM
ADJ OQURNIVENT

CHAI R MCGUI RE t hanked them for com ng today. She said throughout

the investigation, those who are addicted to drugs and al cohol
were one problem area along with co-occurring nental health

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 25- December 8, 2015



di sorders, and in way the DOC needs hospital-like conpetency.
She | ooked forward to continuing that conversation.

M5. BROOKS comented that Title 47 holds are not just for
al coholics; sone Title 47 holds are non-crimnal holds because
of nmental health issues. The one individual with a .6 blood
al cohol level was a suicide hold. Not only are individual com ng
into custody who have not commtted crinmes, but they are
mental ly ill.

CHAIR MCGU RE adjourned the Joint House and Senate Judiciary
Standing Conmittee neeting at 1:17 p. m

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 26- December 8, 2015



